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tion,

the plaintiff/respondent sought

against the defendant/appellant:

(13

(ii)

(i1ii)

Specific performance of an oral
agreement (whick had been part
Jerforaed by the wlaintiff) made
during or about the month of
Sertember, 1974 of certain freerolad
property at Treadways in the parish
of Gt. Catherine.

In addition to or alternatively in
lieu of specific performance damages
for breach of contract.

A declaration (a) that the defendant
raving put the glaintiff in possession
of the said freehold nroverty and
encouraged the laintiff to build her
house thercon and the plaintiff having
with the knowledpge and consent of the
defendant exvended money in bhuilding
the said house 1s entitled to have the
defendant convey and transfer the said
freehold vroperty to her and (b) that
the defendant is a
rroperty.

trustee for the said
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The particulars and averment in suwport of the plaintifs?®

claim were specifically denied aud/or traversed by the
in bis pleaded defence and he in turn counier-claimed againsi the
wlzintiff for recovery of land occupiazd by the plaintif{f and o5
described in his counter-claim; alternstively a declavation thot
the defendant 1s ceniitled to an agrecment for the lease to the
nlaintif{ of tie said land and an injunction restraining the
nlaintiff, her servant or agent from entering or besing upon any
portion of tne defendant’'s land outside the area described in
tkis counter-clain,

Zingham, J. after a careful review of the evidence and

“I‘

consideration of the cascs cited, rejected the defendant's clain
and found wholly for the plaintiff by ordering specific per-
formance and granting the declarations a2s »nrayead.
On azpeal, the chellenge to the corraciness of the
judgment was two uronged:
(i) That the trial judgs wrong in
g“anang snecific parformancs as the
cvidence failed to c¢stablish an enforceable

coniract; that in so doing he wrongly
ayplied the doctrine of

s

art serformance.

(ii) That the trial judge erred in granting the
declaration that the wlaintiff was entitled
to the land the subjoct of the action since
the declaratory judinent implied the
cristencs of substantial rlﬁhtq which,
without a valid contraci, the plmlntlff
could not acquire.

o1 Lo

The plaintiff now well past niddle age had lived at
Treadways for many years until she marricd and removed to 1ivo
in ¥ingston., During her sojourn at Treadways there existed a
close friendshiy between herself and the defendant’s family,

in mavrticular, his mother from the deys when the defendant was 2
bov. Oun the dzath of nlaintiff’s father in 1960, sie inheritsd
32 3/4 acres of laond a2t Treadways. Tuis land she sold to the

dcfendant in 1970 and the transfer wes effccted by Pegistered
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Title. The present disnute 1s over z mortion of that land,

The plaintiff, s higgler, an nccugation now ~iven by
burecaucracy the onsrous title of Infurmal Commercial Vendor,
continued to vizit the area and in fact plicd her weekly tradae
in the neighbouviang Linstead Market.

During the —olitical nre-election violence in 1976, hoew
home at Jones Towa was »partially burnt down to the extent that

1

she toox up tervorary ledgings in the Banbury Church premisss

in 5t. Catherinc. She communicated bhar nlight to defendant
and her unephew ¥Yertic Graham, Both atitended on her at Banbury.
In response to her express desire to purchase a place in ths
arca, defondant cffered her a2 house suct on the land he had
bought from her. I% is from this point there is divergencs.
The plaintiff in her evidence statod that she declined
insisting that it was 2 sale not a gift

., R
542 Was SQoX

ey efforts to buy land in the area were
unsuccassful., fAs & result of a conversation between hersslf

and defendant o a Daturday in Sentember 1976, accowmmpanied by

Bertic Grahamn, she went to the defendant s home the following Azy.|

-

There and then he pointed out the boundaries of land he was

preparad to sell her, She offered £050.00 and after apovarently

friandly vpersvasicn he asreed and she jpaid him this amount somes

time in 1977. Zhe then set about tle building of her house. Tho

B

defendant offered her a nlan and recommendszd a builder. Sha
leclined his ofier as her son-in-law, iecrre Sutherland,
persuaded her sha could otherwise wmoys cheaply build. Notwith-

standing, building aaterinsls were from ting to time receivad by

i3

defendant and his wife and stored on his premises. The plaintifs

said she fivst ncved when two bedroons were completed but she
caught a cold a5 ¢k house had no ceiiing and had o move cut
until the ceiliug was finished. The houso was finolly comoletod

in 1377.
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The relztionshin between the parties deteriorated.
Dispute arose as to the area in which she was put in vossession
and stakes were olaced by defendant to irndicate a nore limited
area she should occucy., She in turn made a2 claim against hiw
for his goats irvespassing ou the lend in her possession,

o
A

bt
ot
=
(4D
p
:
jab}
s

pave evidence corroborating the plainti
as to the boundaries wointed out by ihe defendant: to the
slaintiff refusing to accept land as a gift and offering $60C.
for it. Fhe denied hearing any talk of 2 lease,

Ceorge Sutherland, 2 mason, gave evidence as to the
buildiang of the house by himself and two others; of the defendant

Wt

nointing out the area as claimed che vwiaintiff and his sayias

Ik

fhis is the =2ren I sold Mrs. Forris”., Fe estimated the pro

value of the buiidias at $65,000.00,

Defendant in evidence contended that the price for the
3 3/4 acres was not [560.00 as allesed by the plaintiff bu
$2,909.00. Ie denied any agreement for sale or the receipt of
$60.00. According to him on the Sunday, when plaintiff visited
him he told hoer VI can't cive you the land, I leass you one
square® and the »1aintiff agreed. Be nointed out the boundariss

[rek]

as described in his counter-claim. There wras no agreement on i

[

1
3

terms of the laase or srice. It was acreazd tnat there should be
. of one room

2 grace period and that she should build a2 house/ of concrat:

block and steel room. Fe did receive scome materials for a time.

Yowever, wnen ve sow additions being wmade to the building bz

protested but the woriosen threatened him and fearing for his 1irfe

T o 1— £ Thonn o 1 ¢

ne took mo rurther actlion.

After Lis review of the evidance aond submissions of
Counsel, the leovesd trial judge concluded thus (pp. 9-10):
,V1d mce there can be little Jdoubt
chever version is sccewnted as to the
ﬂ”tt r of the asreeme rt entered into,

w‘ they it was 2 sals or lease, an
carly arises in favour of the plaintifi.
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finding and after referring to the cases - lingswood Istate Co.

Anderson (14522) 2 G.B. 16%; Dillwyn vs. Llewelyn (1862}

5154

-5

"On the wlaintiff's own ount which is
susperted by the t““tlmoé, of 0oth
Heuben CGraham and George 3utherland the fact
that the agreement weas or~l would not ipso
facto wake it unenforceablc by virtue of
cction 4 of the Statute of Frauds as there
is anple cvidence capable of amounting to acts
of sart performance, by the entry of the
plaintiff into possession of the land and the
expenditure of a considerable sum of money in
erecting whet is on the cvidence a substantial
building., These acts of pavt performance are
sufficient to take the cass out of the pro-
vision of the Statute.

b

I find 2s a fact that there was an oral agree- ;
ment for the sale of two sauares of land as on !
the cvidence it is highly improbable that had

the ogreement been a lease zs the defenlant

conrepﬂvf"S A lease of what on the evidence was
still a period of uncertain duration, that the
plaintiff, a woman of mature ure and some
exnerioncs would have taken the risk of expending
such a large sum amounting {0 H40 OOG to con-
struct a house, which on ihs defeondant's
eviconce is likely to last for at least sixty
vears, her conduct therefore, 1s comsistent with
that of an absolute owner and that which one would
exwect from someone who ! an interest in land not
merely of a certQ1n duration but of some depres
of wermancnce.’

’b

He then considered the aliernctive, namely, the cquit

ing in the event it could he said that he erredl in S0

De F.G & J. 517, and Chepronierc vs. Lambert (3017) 2 C.L. 355

contract Mr. Ratiray submitted that regardless of what viou was

at ». 11:

The cases cited by Mr. Haughton (Cayle were

all supnortive of thc contention that the
¢ffuct of the factual circumstances as 1

have found thom to be is thot an equity now

s urato the fee simele of the whole

wiich is vested ia thae Pﬂfendant until
iarges his obligstion under the agrec-
ment batween the plaintiff ziad himself, thet is,
cquiay, On the facts, therefore, as I hav
nowever, 1 am in comnleie agreement with
rvation of Mr, ha ton Gayle that as
the covidencs is overwhelwmingly in favour of the
existency of an agreement for a sale of two
sguares of land the cquity is best satisfied by
ordering a transfer of the foo simple of the

4

parcel of land in ouestion o the plaintiff.’

}

Iin surnert of his contention ithat there was no enforczehie
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taken of the evidence it did not prove the eXisteance of a
contract for the sale of land with respect to the following
essentials:

(1) The subject matter of the alleged
agyregmint.

(3} WFutwvality of agrecment.

2 that regard on the plaintiff's own evidence the defendant

-

offered the land as a gift and the whole idea of sclling came
fron the plaintiff with no agreement from the defendant.
Accordingly, as there was no memorandus in writing to satisfy
the Statute of Frauvds for the Qquitﬂble doctrine of part
performance to be agnlicable, there aust be clear evidence of
a contract, certein and definite in i%ts terms., In the instant

case, neither ths evidence of the plaintiff nor of her witnesses

rove the existence of a contract. Further,

was sufficiznt to

-

the contract must first exist and b2iag in existence, the acts

as looked on must bo such as are consistent with the existencs

(&
et

of that contract. ‘Ye cited in support lMaddison v, Alderson (00s

and McBride v, Zendland (post). Accordingly, the learncd trial

3

judee erred in using the acts purroried o be of part perforiaaance
as evidence of 1thz creaticn of a contract when the nurnose of

part performance is to permit enforcoement of contract deficient

in writing. In short, the evidence 41l not supwort the conclusion

that there was =n asreement botween the parties for the salc of

land and the scts relicd on as pert nerformance are not sufd
requivocal to refer to the contract as allerad and to no other,

On the contrary, he My, Rattray wsas promoting a situation

as in Inwards v. Bakxer (1965} 1 All 5.0, 448, and on that b=asis

the nlaintiff wovld therefore be entitied to occupation as long
as she lived. fe conceded that on such ¢ finding ths defradant

sfore submitting thnt on

1:5

Must 10se his counter-clain. e was tho
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A

{,\) R
o

B

o

told court ihat you peid Mr., White

$ixty Dollars for land which he took
from vou and never gsvsz you back. You

2

iso told court that after the house came

o perfection, that you and the Whites

were in bad blood. wow do you know What

nzgwened to the Jixty Dollars you gave
to the defendant?

Yl g3
o osir.

You and Yrs. Vhite a
incident where she h
there any other iacident in which

¥rs, White used hard words to you?

-

part from the
ad threaten you, was

dor't renember.

e, Yhite is saying that he never sold
vou any land at 11, %hat he had agreed
to lease you a portion »f land?

Y2 s0ld me the land. Ve never argued on
any lease at all.

3id he ever mention lease to you at all?

sid yvou mention leass to Himd

-

} ing tonzt thsre was no discussion
emant abU“L seliing you any land?

ted to give me a bit
trat I did not want
wowld pay hinm for it

said that he wan
nd and I tnld %i

vive me that I
q&id. SO,

9 © & 6 8 3 © 9 « o ¢ A B O O B 6 g O B © O o6 5 0 9 o B

2 is saying that ho told veou that he would
lease you some land to nut up a temporary
building to make vour honma?

hat do vou mean by @ %

a

°

You kept your part of

orary building?

fxplained to witness).

e made no such arrancements withr the
eferdant to wut up zny such build ting.

9 6 0 6 0o 6 5 & o % 8 ¢ 0 00 G I ® eI G 0D C O 8 O

bargain. You

him for the land?




Thomas Alderson iuduced the avnellant /4 to serve him as house-
keeper witheut warss and to give up other wroswects of
estabfllishment in life by a verbal preaise to make a will leaving

her al 1ife estate in land and afterwards signed a will not

duly

estate. She served him for many .years down to the time of his

death. The will heing invalid for want of proper attestation

ther

of the title deeds, the resgondent, A, as heir at law brought
an action to recover t

counter-claim she insisted she was entitled to the same benefits !

that

virtue of a narol asrecment allegad to have been made with the

A

said

snd then later after deaiing with the particular facts of th: casz

said|a

e was an intestacy. The awpellant baving possessed herseif

aecea

-0

-

Now in Madcdison v. Alderson (12837) & A.C. 487,

~

-

pttested but by which ke purported te leave her the life

I
hem. Ry her statement of defence and

| taken,
she would have /had the will beer sroverly executed by

—a
g
)

B

consideration and partly performed by aer.

T

Iv the course of his judsgment the Sarl of Selborne, 1.J.

at p. 4750

"1 am not aware of any case in which the whole

purchase-mnoney has bcen paid without delivery

of wossessior, ner is such 2 case at all likely

to = n. All the authorities shew that the
acts reliad upon as part serformance must De un-

cguivocally, and in their own nature referable

>

AT
P
to some such agreement as that alleged.

law deducible from these authorities
in ny ooinion, fatal to ths appellant’s
T mere continuance in Thomas
dersonts service, thoush without any actual
payment of wages, was not such an act as to
n itself cvidence of @ ¢ contract; much

of a contract concerniny her master's land.

sxnlicable, without susposing any such
-ontract, as easily as thoe continuance of a
; in nossession after the exsiration of a

v what may be considered

=4

tlr, Rattray avoarently relied uno

rrower view of the doctrine of neort pevformance expressed

in laddison v. Alderson 2t »., 485
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"But there is no conflict of fudicial oninion,

and in my mind no ground for asonable costro-
versy as to the essential character of the act

‘ whicl: shall anount to & ¢ werformance, in

| ong particular It wusz: unecuivocal It

! nust ave relation to tnb Oﬂ& avrecment rglied

unon, and to no other.'

Lord O'iagan was wmerely stating brizfly the grounds forv

= conc%rranc“ in the judgment of the Lord Zhancellor. FHis

remarks should not be taken as differing from the statement of
|

the ?aw in tne 2assage quoted that the acts must be referable

to 'some such agreecment as alleged.”

The stateunent of the vmrincinle in wy view should not hLe

so narrowly apvlied to fetter the court in its pursuit of

jab]
9]

substantial justice. It is as stated in Tingswood Hstate Co.

(’a Ltd.| v, Ancderscr (1963) 2 .i. 169 by Millmer, L.J. at p. 121:

Y1 do nov understand, however, that nart
perfcrrance must necessarily b2 referable to

the asvaement, and only the narticular agreemen
relied on. I cite from 1ﬁﬂon on Contract, 21st ed.,
D, 75, wiere the rprinciple is stated, as I think
corroucely, in the tolioW1ﬂﬂ zemins: 'The acts of
periormance relied upon must cof themselves sup
1 the sxistence of a contract such as it is desirad
‘ to wrove, although they need nct establish: the
¢xact terms of that contr 'oAs T understand it

if thore is evidence of su nart performance toa®
15 8%

ficient to warraat 7he admission of oral
evidence to prove wnat tho exact terms of tae con-
trace were,'

w3

In McBride v. fandland (1614} 25 C.L.7, 69 the piaintif?

and idefendant were father and daughtsr. A number of propertiss
werdg about to b sold by privaie auction. At the request of fihw
plaintiff the Joeferdant’s husband asresd not to bid against tiw

plaintiff on the olaintiff’'s promise thet on his wmurchase of i

uvroderties at the auction, the husbzrd siould have the pavrticular

nrogerty by naving five percent on ctever he, the plaintiff

( ) shoyld give for it, that the defendant should have the rizui o

taks the sroperty 2% the plaintiff’s Jdeath on what it cost ki

and the defondent’s husband should heave vossession as soon 2sg

the nurchase was coanleted. The following day the wlaintis{
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bought the proper:ies and the husband went into possession,

Loon

to take an estate ir fee simple on the land subject only to the

def eﬁdant s tenancy by the year, tae defendant relyinpg on the

coqvérsation conteniad that a contract was established between

the

the

tine |
renrésentative of the plaintiff, the amount of the nurchase w

It w:

and

did not show ary part performance to takes it out of the SLtatuts
of ¥Frauds., In the joint judpment of Isaacs and Bich, JJ., t

Fo 114

ﬁlalntl‘{ on th2 one hand and the defendant and husband con

ywing is werthy of note (pp. 76-7):

“It is necessary in the first nlace tc

point out that eventuslly, as arcwed on the
resvondent’s beha’f, it was claimed only that
she ed a ‘right to nurchase,’ that is, an
onticn, and net that she had already 'purchased’
by xercis ing the owtion s5¢ 25 to be ﬁrgsbntly
entiticd to the fe2e simple in souity subject to
the avnellant's life estate, but with a right

of *ossra ion 1in the nmeantine.’’

Wrile Hipeins, J. had this to say: {p. 94):

prefer £o rest my <ecision on the

i that there is no contract at all - no
ntention to create a legal bond, and no con-
sidevation mov1nL fron the defendant for any
proniss made to her or with vegard to her. A
@nere Statement of intention c¢r promisce does not

become & contract enforcsable by our law becauss
of the fact that the person wromiscd has, in

reliance on the promise, adopted an aiterad
course of living or conduct.’”

5.

ngr the terms of the arrangement were nebulous and the acis

rart performance relied on were ecuivecal. The nlaintifl?

s

relationshin snd beor remaining with the intestate until his

relat

ser

(R

howere Tattributabkle to very many reasons, having no

ion whatever to the contract on which she would now raly

Lord OfPagan in Haddison v. Alderson at w. 486, In the

the plaintiff seeking a declavation that he was entitled

yther involvins 2 right to nurchase the nroperty a reasouable

after the death of the rlaintiff unon oayiang to the pevsonal

s held (i) +hat the conversation did not establish a con

(ii) if there was any such contraci as alleged, the cvidcacs

b
A

Both lMaddison v, Alderson and dciride v, Sandland, uson

v fir. Fattray relied, are clearly distinsuishable. In the

-

woney !

e - gt
tract

S

P
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latter case the cloim was based wpon asn eption and an inchoats
and putstanding orouise - in short, 2 wmanifestly imverfact
gift, In the Znstant case although the learned trial judse

in hiis written judecront

1de no specific finding of the

of the §60.00 o5 wurchase woney he accewied the plaintiff's

evideiice wihout any reservation. Accordincly, in his fine

of apreen

(\

ent {or salc of the land described by the nleintiff,
ths finding of the purchase price offered by the nlointiff and
acczpted by the defeadant was immlicit.

There was tuerefore:

(i) in executed consideration, the price paid.

m

(i1) The ontry into possas
901nted out by the daf:

o]

f the lands
nt

(iii) T
NE

building and occuration of 2 house
vesnectable size

Accerdinsly, § an of the visw

s

was suffici

|.1

evidence to establish an agreement for sale of the land as

described by the laintiff and the acts of part performancs wers

referable by theily veary noture 1o such 2 covntract as allege

uq
b

I amp therefore 1in

cent with the learred trial judge thet
in the circumstanctes an order for spccific performance was the
anpropriate ronsdy.,

Mith vefuvenace to the alternative plinth of this judsment
I am of the vizw that a finding that there was an agreement for
sals | render it uanecessarv to consider the eauity that moy

arise from anv inducement or encouravem=nt offesred by the

(o8
C:
hia)

endant. Tr: pesitions taken Ly the varties were clearly

defined in the 1lezdings and the nasure apd conduct of their

respective cases.  Tne plaintiff rested her clainm on an agroencal

for sale; t the plaiati

o the terms 217t execution of a sronsy

lease. The lserned trial judse having vejected the defendsnt’s

casel Mr. Fattray's contoation that the plaintifi’s claim wos

was put 1n possession
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in the

plaint

equity arising from the defeundan

iff to build her house on his iaad,

but unwarranted s»verance of that oar:

eviden
from h
nity 1

itand.

J u(“ ﬂ'e

Diliwyn

ce that the defendant offered the
er evidence clearly the defendant

2 the end accepted the £60.060 as

In oranting the declarations as

ol

was clearly influenced by the jud

vS. kl} S A ‘iY'N (1862) /s.‘ -D‘: Fo (la

the 1
indulg
that ¢
that I

made 1

rin opinion which I have expressad,
e in any comparative and closz an
ase with tnoce of the instant case
prefer to ragard the decision an

n that case as resting on iis zay

oments thersin in the context in wh

2TOD

recogn
more 2

an ent

the 1le

dictsa

soasclf

be by

in 197

Jk‘Cu

Foweve

riate to the speclal circumstance
ition of oay general opower in the
n equity such as that arisiang in

itlement to the fece simple of the

t's encouragsenent to the

rested upon an asty

of the plaintiff's
land as a gift, wherens
because of her imporiu-

the purchase price of the

vaved thr learned trisi

sment and order in

5 J. 817, Because of
it is unnecessary to

alysis of the facts iun

. It is enough to say

2 conseacuential orde

ticular facts ond the

ick they were made 2s

¢ therein rather than @

Court to elevate without

Iawards v. Faker into

land.

Cn the issue in contention and the findings of fact of -

arned tris) judge there was no n:

in Dillwyn vs, Llewelyn,

Thore remains the question of whe

c
L)

ic nerformancy should include an

Hoglstersd Title.

It is true that when the nlaintiff

Q0 the traansfer was by Register.d

iff os stated in hor ovi

Smccd
=
(v
—l
e

the transistr in the prosent coase

r such desive and zupectation are

transfter by Registeved Title 1s now the
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the only or essential mode of conveyance. Faving regard to
the circumstances uander which the agreement came into being,
and to the bargein urice paild for the land, I am uvawilling to

Tead into or infer in the arrcement for sale an undertaking
by the defendant tu provide or meet the attendant costs of a
Registered Titlae,

For the roasons copiained herein, I would dismiss the

appeal and affirn the judgment in the court below to the ext

of an Order for specific operformance as indicated herein.
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CAMPBELL J.A.

By an amended Statement of Claim filed on November 9,
1981 the respondent claimed specific performance and cother
reliefs in respect of an oral agreement made with the appellant
in or about the month of September, 1976. Under this agreement
the respondent asserted that the appellant agreed to sell to her
for the price of §60.00 a demarcated part of his land at Tread-
ways in the parish of St. Catherine of which he the appellant was
the registered owner. The respondent by her said claim further
pleaded that pursuant to the agreement she was put into
possession of this demarcated parcel of land and in reliance cn
the agreement and with the knowledge and comnsent of the apnellant
she part - performaed the oral agreement by constructing on the land
a sturdy and permanent dwelling house which at the date of
construction in 1977 was valued at $40,000.00. She complains
that the appellant has now refused and/or neglected to effect a
transfer of the land to her which transfer she said was orally
agreed to be & registered transier.

The appellant by his defence denied that there was any
agreement for sale. Fe however admitted that he put the respondent%
into possession of a part of his land in September 1976 and that
the respondent commenced living on this portion of land since
November, 1976. This portion of land he pleaded is less than that
claimed by the respondent. Further, he pleaded, she was put into
possession under an agreement for a lease which was to be executcd
at a later date. Under this agreement for a leasec she was given
permission to e¢stablish a home on the land but only by erecting =z
temporary building.

The anpeilant further asserted that despite protestations

from him, the respondent continued e¢nlarging the original
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improvised room which she had constructed in October, 1976 while
at the same time, since at least from around November, 1977
refusing to discuss much less to execute the contemplated lease.
The suit was heard by Binghem J. who on March 12, 1984
gave judgment for the respondent with re¢asons in thesc words:

“"The cases cited by Mr. Haughton Cayle
were all supportive of the contention
that the effect of the factual
circumstances as I have found them to
be is that an equity now fastens unto
the fee simple of the whole estate
which is vested in the defendant until
he discharges his obligation under the
agreement between the plaintiff and
himself that is, does equity. On the
facts, therefore, as I have found,
however, I am in complete agreement
with the observation of Mr. HFHaughton
Gayle that as the evidence is
overwhelmingly in favour of the existence
of an agreement for sale of two squares
of land the equity is best satisfied by
ordering a transfer of the fee simple
of the parcel of land in questicen to
the plaintiff.

Judgment accordingly for plaintiff for:
1. Declaration as prayed
2. Specific performance

3. Costs to the plaintiff to be taxed
if not agreed."”

Against this judgment the appellant has apprealed on
grounds which Mr. Rattray has summarized and argued under three

heads namely:

1. N¢ contract was proved on the
evidence;

2. If =0 the contrary a contract is
held to have been proved, there
was no part performance;

3. Even 1f both contract and part-
performaxce are held to have been
establisted, nonectheless the
appellant cannot be ordered by
virtue of the order for specific
performance, to grant a registered
title to the yespondent.
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Dealing with the first of his submissions kr. Rattray submitted
that bearing in mind the evidence of the close and intimate
relationship between the parties as the background against whkich
the alleged oral contract of sale is projected, the conversations
<“\ between the resvondent and the appellant relative to the land
| transaction establish no more than an intention by the appellant
to benefit the respondent. The exchanges fell short of
constituting a bargain, because they were inconclusive, imprecise
and lacked mutuality as to whether a sale was intended as distinct
from the manifestation of a2 mere benefaction. In this regard

Mr. Rattray relied heavily on McBride v. Sandland (1918} 25 C.L.R.

p. 69. The relevant evidence of the defendant in that case which

the learned trial judge accepted in giving judgment for her 1is

summarized thus by FigginsJ. on appeal at pages 91-92:

"The evidence of the defendant is that the
father, on the eve of the sale of several
Killicoat properties, in August, 1&85, said
to Sandland, his son-in-law, in the presence
of his daughter (the defendant) that he
would purchase all the propertics when sold
in one lot subject to annuities:

"I will arrange that Carrie' (the daughten)
"shall have that' (the Flagstaff property)
by paying 5 percent on whatever I give
tomorrow, she will have the right to take
K it at my death at what it cost me and you
shall have possession as soon as the
purchase is complete, and you canr put your
stock on it right away ......... " Then says
the defendant': 'my husband thanked him
and said he did not wish to oppose hin at
the bidding, but he must have more land
to enable him to maintain his wife and
family. I thanked him alsc. The sale
took place the next day, and my father
bought the whole lot, ircluding the flag-
staff. After the purchase my husband moved
his sheep from Stony CGap in due course into
the Flagstaff, and from the Adelaide Road
too he moved his sheep into the Flagstaff.
j('x Fe had his sheep on the Flagstaff and worked
| it till the time of his death.' The husbend
died in 1909, leaving his wife his sole
legatee. "
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On this evidence liggims J. having opined that unless
a contract could be extracted from the conversaticn no contract
as alleged by the defencdant existed, concluded thus at page 92:

"There is a promisc on the words used,
not an agreement,"

and at page 93 he further concluded that the alleged contract was
wanting in mutuality. Fe said thus:

"The 'thanks' with which both Sandland and
his wife received the intimation of
McBride's intentions as to the Flagstaff
confirm the view that the transaction was
rcgarded as being essentially a benefac-
tion and not a bargain.”

In my view the¢ conversation froi which an oral contract

is to be established in the present case is clearly and materially‘

different from that stated by IigginsJ. in HcBride v. Sandland

supra.

Before considering the evidence of the conversation

from which the oral contract emerges I will deal with a subsidiary|

submission of Mr. Rattray which is that in considering whether any|

oral contract emerges from the ccnversation only the ¢vidence as
given by the plaintiff/respondent is to be considered and if from
such e¢vidence no oral centract emerges, supportive evidence from
bystanders which would fill gawns in the evidence of the plaintiff
and so establish a contract will ncot save the situaticn.

This is a wroposition which in my opinion is neither

well founded in principle nor by the rules of evidence nor on the

basis of common sense¢. What if the plaintiff who secks to enforce)

the contract is the successor in title of the person, now deceascd

with whom in the absence of the plaintiff the deferdant orally

contracted? 1Is his claim to be defeated because his predecessor

is not around to testify as to what was said even though there are

alive persons who witnessed the conversation? What if a plaintiff

through oversight omits part of a conversaticn? 1Is & bystander

P

vrecluded from giving evidence of this? Thils proposition is
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quieted by the very case namely McBride v. Sandland (suprg relied

upon by Mr. Rattray because the evidence of the conversation

_ ) o the husband
which was relied on as establishing a contract with Sandland/was
in fact given by the wife/defendant who was a bystander. Again

in Kingswood Estate Co. Ltd v. Anderscn (1963) 2 Q.B. 169

evidence of a conversation with the plaintiff ocut of which the

oral contract emerged was given not only by the Defendant

Mrs. Anderson but also by her daughter Mrs. Brown whe was present.

Further, evidence by another daughter of a conversation with the

plaintiff subsequent to the first ccnversation wes also admitted

in evidence. This had the effect of an admission by the plaintiff

of the truth of the conversaticn which he had previously had with

the defendant.

In my view the trial court has to consider the entirety

of the evidence pertaining to the conversation as given in ecvidence|

by all the witnesses, and having resolved conflicts if such exist
conclude from the salicnt facts emerging from such conversation
whether those facts constitute a concluded oral contract.

Now to the evidence on record. The respondent states
that following cn her disaster in having her home in Kingston
razed to the ground, the appeliant in January, 1976 offered as a
gift twe squares of his land on which she could build a home.

She declined his cffer of a gift but intimated she would purchasc
the prcffered land. She admitted that she did not then mention
any price. Nothing further was heard cof the appellant’s cffer

of a gift and the respondent's inchoate offer tc buy until about
the latter part of 1976 when the respondent having failed in her
effort to acauire land elsewhere for purchase, renewed her offer
to buy to the appellant on a chance encounter with him on a
Saturday in the Linstead market. The outccme of this change

encounter was that they agreed to meet on the immediately

wn

ucceeding Sunday. On this date they?gﬁ the land. The respondent|
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was accompanied by her nephew one Bertie Craham. The land was
demarcated by the appellant and the respondent there stated that
'she would be paying $60.00 to the appellant for this demarcated
§<M> area. The exchanges which took place on the land which were
| elicited under cross-examination are better set out verbatim and
are as hereunder:

"Q. Was there any talk about the price on
the Sunday?

A. VWhen the defendant pointed out the
land to me he said in the presence of
Bertie 'this is the pilece I am going
to give to you' I said I don't want
it for nothing I am going to pay you for
it. I told him then I would be giving

(’ him sixty dollars for it.
' So you fixed the price?

A. I told him that and he said 'l am not
selling the land to you I am giving
the land to you.'

Q. So no money passed that day?

No sir.

A
Q. You saicd that you paid this money
months after?

e A. Yes sir."
As regards the conversation on the land, Mr. Bertie
Graham's evidence so far as 1is relevant is as follows:

Q. Sc¢ when you went te Mr., White's
home was anybody else there?

A. I saw Mrs. Morris and Mr. White.
Q. Anybody said anything?
A. After a while Mr. White said that
we must follow him let him show her
a portion of his land that she is
‘(“@ to build the home.
G. Do you know what was the reason
why Mr. White was pointing out this
land to Mrs, Morris?

A, Yes sir.
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Q. Do you know from what was said
as to whether Mrs. Mcrris was
buying (sic) the 1land for
nothing or whether she was
getting the land in any other

way?
( | A. Mr, White had said that he was
» giving her the land for nothing.

G. What was Mrs. Morris response
to that?

A, She said she would not like it

for nothing she wculd give him
360.00 forit.

G. Did Mr. White say anything to that?

e said 'whatscever you do it is
left to you.™

As regards the actual payment of the $60.00 the evideance
— of the respondent is as hereunder:

"Q. You told the Court yesterday that
ycu paid Mr. White the $60.00 some
months aiter he pointed out the
land. Can you give the Ccurt any
assistance as to when you paid for
the land?

A. It was while I was living in the
housc for the first time.

3. What happened when you give him the meney?
(‘» A, He told me that he is not selling
. me the land but i1s I who giving
him the money. Fe then tock the
money ., "

The evidence of George Sutherland on behalf of the
respondent was that on an occasicn when he and the appellant
went on the latter's land, the appellant pointed to an area of
land saying ''this is the area 1 sold Mrs. Morris."

The appellant in his evidence admits substantially

- the respondent's evidence on the sequence of events. He however
(Mf denied that he hadfgny stage agreed to make a gift of the land
to the respondent or to sell her the land. He,to the contrary,

statés categorically that it was the respondent who from the

very beginning was badgering him for a gift of a house spot. He
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recsisted her request until, about September 1976 he agreed to
help her by agreeing in principle for her to have a lease of a
house spot with the terms still to be agreed upon. This she
accepted,

The learned judge found as a fact that the appellant
was not a frank and truthful witness. He found on the other hand
that the respondent was frank and straight-forward. Fe found
that on the pleadings both parties admitted as a fact that there
was an agreement, the only issue therefore was whether this
agreement was one of sale or lease. He impliedly found that there
was an oral agreement for sale when he delivered himself thus:

"On the plaintiff'’s own account which
is supported by the testimony of both
Reuben Craham and George Sutherland
the fact that the agreement was oral
would not ipso factc make it
unenforceable by virtue of secticn 4
of the Statute of Frauds as there 1is
ample evidence capable cf amounting to
acts of part performance."

Later in his’judgment he expressly found as a fact that
ther¢ was an oral agrecement for the sale of two squares of land,
He delivered himself thus:

"I find as a fact that there was an

oral Agreement for the sale of two
squares of land as on the evidence

it is highly improbable that had the
agreement been a lease as the defendant
contended, a lecase of what on the
evidence was still a pericd of uncertain
duration, that the plaintiff a woman

of mature age and some experience

would have taken the risk ot expending
such & large sum amcunting to $40,600.00
to construct a house which on the
defendant's cvidence is likely to last
for at least sixty years. Her conduct
therefcre is consistent with that of an
absolute owner and that which one would
expect from scmeonc who had an interest
in land not merely cf a certain duration
but of some degree of permanence.”
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Mr. Rattray contended that flcwing from the above
extract from the judgment, it is clear that the learned judge's
finding of an cral agreement was based on the evidence of the
conduct of the respondent in entering upon the land and in
constructing a substantial house thereon, which he found as
amounting to acts cf part performance. This approach of the
learned judge says Mr. Rattray was wrong because the existence
of an agreement must first be established independently of any
purported acts of part performance.

I acree with Mr. Rattray that the existence of an orzal
agreement must be established by evidence independently of the
acts or conduct which are claimed as amounting to acts of part
prerformance. However the learned judge did not rely wholly on
these acts of part performance as the basis of his finding that
an oral agreement was established. He found that the evidence
was overwhelmingly in favour of the existence of an agreement
for sale. Thus he said:

"On the facts, therefore, as I have
found, however, I am in complete
agreement with the observation of
Mr. Faughten Gayle that as the
evidence is overwhelmingly in favour
of the existence of an agreement for
a sale of two squares of land, the
equity is best satisfied by ordering
a transfer of the fee simple of the

parcel of land in question to the
plaintiff."

It is true that the learned judge did not particularize

the facts found by him but his conclusion that the evidence is
overwhelmingly in favour of a sale can only mean that he

accepted the evidence of the respondent and her witnesses which

disclose facts from which he could have found as he did that thereg|

was an agreement for a sale of two squares of land. The excerpts

from the evidence of the respondent and her witness as to the
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exchanges on the land when it was being pointed out by the
appellant, and of the respondent on the occasion when the
payment of $60.00 was being made, were such that the reasonable
inference to be drawn therefrom and which must have been drawn
by the learned judge was that even though the appellant, because
of the long established goocd relationship with the respondent as
a matriarchal figure to him, was reluctant to sell the two
squares of land as acainst making a gift thereof, he was not
resclutely averse to receiving the sum proposed and coffered by
the respondent as a purchase price if such was the respondent's
wish namely to pay for the land and not to receive it as a gift.
The evidence of CGraham that on the day when the land was
demarcated the appellant in response td thekrespondent's
insistence on paying for the land did say ‘'whatever you do is left]|
to you' amounted to an acceptance of the respondent's counter-
cffer. Alsc the evidence c¢f the respondent that on the date

of payment the appellant, nctwithstanding his earlier statement
that he was not selling the land, Jdid eventually accept the money
after saying in ccnsolation to himself, that it was the respondent]|
who was insisting on paying for the land, was concrete confirma-
tiocn of his acceptance from the date the land was pointed out,
of the respondent's counter offer to purchase the aforesaid land

at the price of $60.00. There is alsc on record the further

appellant on 2 date subsequent to the demarcation cof the land
that he had scld land to the respondent.

It must alsoc be borne in mind that the appellant
neither by his pleading nor in his cvidence raised any issue as
to the land having been disposed of by gift or of its having
been cccupied under a 1icence. His assertion is that the land
albeit less than that claimed by the respondent, was given over

to the respondent under an agreement for a lease the exact terms
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of which were tc be subsequently wcrked cut. The appellant
having thus admitted that there was an oral agreement affecting
the land, the learned judge had only to decide by reference to
the evidence whether the agreement was one of sale as pleaded
by the respondent or one for a lease as pleaded by the appellant.

There was evidence from which the learned judge could
find as he did that the oral agreement was for the sale of twc
squares of land, and though he did not make a specific finding
as to the purchase price he must have found this inferentially
namely that the afcresaid purchase price was $60.00 as given
in evidence by the respohdent. Such an inference is implicit in
the finding that there was a sale because there was adduced in
evidence no other competing purchase price. The learned judge
was accordingly not in error in finding that there was an oral
agreement nor did he commit the further error of basing his find-
ing on the facts adduced in evidence by the respondent which
were relevant only to establish acts of part performance by her.

The second submission by Mr. Rattray is that even if
an oral contract of sale was established on the evidence, there
were no sufficient acts cf part perfgrmance.

In Maddison v. Alderson 8 App. cases 467 the Earl of

Selbourne L.C. at page 469 stated the principle applicable tg¢
part performance as follows:

"All the authcrities shew that the acts
relied upeon as pert performance must be
unequivecally, and in their own nature,
referable to some such agreement as
that alleged." (emphasis mine)

Later at page 480 he said:

"The acts of part performance, exemplified
in the long series of decided cases in
which parcl contracts concerning land
have been enforced, have been (almost, if
nct quite, universally) relative to the
possession, use, or tenure of the land.”
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In the same case, Lord O'Hagan though expressly
concurring both with the conclusions of the Lord Chancellor
as well as with the reasons on which such conclusions were
grounded, stated the principle of part performance somewhat
differently and mcre restrictively than the Lord Chancellor.
At page 485 he said:

"But there is no conflict of judicial
opinion and in my mind no ground for
reascnable controversy as to the
essential character of the act which
shall amount tc a part performance,
in one particular. It must be
unequivccal. It must have relaticn
to the one agrecment relied upon
and to no cther.™

Mr. Rattray relied cn Maddison v. Alderson and on

McBride v. Sandland (supra) as laying down the principle by

which and the limiting circunstances within which specific
performance ¢f an oral contract pertaining to land will be
decreed., If I understand Mr. Rattray correctly, his submission
is that since the respondent's entry on the appellant's land
and her constructicn of a building thereon are as consistent
with the appellant’s bencfaction having regard to their close
and intimate relationship as with the oral contract which she
alleges there are no unequivocal acts of part performance.

In s¢ submitting Mr. Rattray in my view was relying
on the statement of Lord O'lagan namely that the acts of part
performance ''must have relatioh to the one agreement relied upon

and to no other" (emphasis mine.)

This statement of Lord O'Fagan however found no suppert |

from the other Law Lords. Lord Blackburn did not essay a

statement of the principle and Lord Fitzgerald in adopting the

reasoning of the Lord Chancellor said at page 491:
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"I have had the advantage of reading
the judgment of the Lord Chancellor
on this question ( a reference to

i part performance) and I adeopt his

3('\ reasons. The Lord Chancellor has

AN well laid down that the acts relied
on as performance to take the case
out of the statute must be unequivocally
and in their nature referable to some
such agreement as that alleged, and I
may add must necessarily relate tc and
affect the land the subject of that
agreement."

In Kingswood Estate Co. Ltd. v. Anderscn 1963 2 Q.B. 169

Wilmer L.J. in considering the principle of part performance at pagé

181 said thus:

i( ) "Itis said however that the act of the

et defendant in geing into coccupation was
equivocal in that it might be referable
to any kind of tenancy agreement. I do
not understand however, that part
performance must necessarily be referable
.tc the agreement, and only the particular
agreement, relied on. I cite from Anson
cn Ccntract, 21st ed. page 75 where the
principle is stated, as I think correctly
in the following terms. ‘The acts of
perfcrmance relied upon must of themselves
suggest the existence of a contract such
as it is desired tc preve, although they
need nct establish the exact terms of

I that contract.' As I understand it, if

A ‘there is evidence of such part performance,

‘ that is sufficient to warrant the

admission of cral evidence to prove what
the exact terms of the contract were."

Upjohn L.J. at page 189 had this tc say:

"Fowever Mr. Blundell relies on the well-
‘known conditions necessary to prevent the
cperation of the statute laid down by
Warmington L.J. in Chaproniere v. Lambert
and says that the acts of part performance
here do not satisfy the first condition,
namely, that the acts of part performance
e must not only be referable to a contract
3( ) such as is alleged, but be referable tc
"""" no cther title. So he says that the acts
of part performance here are equally
consistent with a weekly tenancy and to a
tenancy for lives so that 1t cannot be
said that the acts cf part performance are
referable tc no other title. This however
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"is a long explcded idea. The true
rule is in my view stated in Fry

on Specific Performance, 6th ed. p.
278, section 582. 'The true
principle, however, of the operation
of acts of part performance seems

only to require that the acts in

- question be such as must be referred
to some contract, and may be referred
tc the alleged one, that they prove
the existence of some contract and are
consistent with the contract alleged."

Thus it is the principle as stated by the Earl of

Selbourne L.C. in Maddison v. Alderson 6upra) which has been

accepted and applied in practice. This means that the acts of
part performance need not be referable exclusively to the
contract alleged but will be sufficient if they refer to some
contract of the general nature ¢f that alleged.

In this casc the evidence of close and intimate
relationship does not create any uncertainty as to the basis on
which the respondent entered into pcssession.

The appellant is quite specific that nc question of
benefaction arises. He says the respondent was let into
possession under an agreement for a lease the terms cf which were
subsequently to be worked out and agreed upon. The respondent to
the cdntrary said she entered into possessicn under an oral
contract of sale. Her entry into possession and her construction
on the land of}iubstantial building are acts which are therefore
referable to "some such agreement as that alleged"” by her namely
an oral contract of sale. They were mcre consistent with the
contract of sale stated by her than with the agrecement for a lease

as pleaded by the appellant. The learned judge sc¢ concluded. Le

said:
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"It is highly improbable that had the
agreement been a lease as the defendant
contended, a lease of what on the
evidence was still a pericd ¢of uncertain
duration, that the plaintiff a woman of
mature age and some experience would
have taken the risk of expending such a
large sum amounting to §$40,000.90 to
construct a house, which on the
defendant's evidence is likely to last for
at least sixty years. Ler conduct there-
fore is consistent with that of an
absolute owner and that which one would
expect from scmecne who had an interest
in land not merely of a certain duraticn
but of some degree cf permanence."

I am in complete agreement with the conclusion of the
learned judge that these acts of the respcndent were consistent
with and referable to the oral ccntract established on the evidence
and so constituted acts of part performance.

The third submission by Mr. Rattray is that even if
the learned judge was right in his finding that there was an oral
contract of sale and that there was sufficient act of part
performance justifying a decree of specific performance, the
appellant cannot on the evidence be ordered to give a registered
title.

I am of the opinion that Mr. Rattray's submission is
well founded. There was no evidence that the appetlant had agreed
to give a registered title. The evidence of the respondent at best
amounted to no more than a hope and expectation that the
performance of the oral contract by the appellant would crystallise
in a registered transfer. The learned judge in decreeimg specific
performance properly did not prescribe that it should be by
registered transfer, thus there is no warrant in such a mode of
transfer being stated in the fcrmal judgment as filed.

As regards the declaration granted by the learned judge,

this by reference tc the amended statement of claim was that:
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'"The Defendant having put the plaintiff
in possession cf the said freehold and
encouraged her to build a house thereon
and the plaintiff having with the
knowledge and consent of the Defendant
expended money in building the said .
house, is entitled tuv have the Defendant

o convey and transfer the said freehold
) Lp) property to her."

This declaration by its nature was sought as an
alternative to the claim for specific performance in the event
that the plaintiff failed to establish the oral contraet and
acts of part performance. The learned judge having found as a
fact that there was an oral contract of sale followed by acts
which constitutcd part performance of that contract, properly
ordered specific performance. It was accordingly oticse and

(M) unnecessary to grant the declaration as prayed on this alternative
claim. The grant of this declaration must have been ex abundanti
cautela manifested by the statement of the learned judge when he
said:

"If I am wrcng in so finding that
there was a sale then there is
still the question of how the
equity which clearly arises may
best be satisfied.”
o For the reasons given I would dismiss the appeal and
d\wj confirm the judgment of the learned judge in so far as it orders

specific performance and costs tc the plaintiff.

ROSS J.A.

I agree.




